
Issued on Tuesday 9 April 2024  

 

 
Alison Broom, Chief Executive 

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB COMMITTEE MEETING  

Date: Thursday 18 April 2024 
Time: 10.30 am 

Venue: Town Hall, High Street, Maidstone 
            

Membership: 
 

Councillors English, Hinder and Joy 

 
The Chairman will assume that all Members will read the reports before attending the 

meeting. Officers are asked to assume the same when introducing reports. 

AGENDA Page No. 

 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Notification of Substitute Members   

3. Election of Chairman   

4. Disclosures by Members and Officers   

5. Disclosures of Lobbying   

6. To consider whether any items should be taken in private 
because of the possible disclosure of exempt information  

 

7. Application for a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 

for The Cornwallis School, Hubbards Lane, Boughton 
Monchelsea, Kent, ME17 4HX  

1 - 116 

 



Agenda Item No: 
 

1 - Summary of Report 

Licence Reference 23/03156/LAPRE 
 

Report To: 
 

LICENSING SUB – COMMITTEE  
(UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003) 
 

Date: 
 

2ND APRIL 2024 

Report Title: 
 

THE CORNWALLIS SCHOOL, HUBBARDS LANE, BOUGHTON 
MONCHELSEA, KENT, ME17 4HX 
 

Report Author: 
 

Lorraine Neale 
 

Summary: 

 
 

1. The Applicant – Future Schools Trust 

2. Type of authorisation applied for: A premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

3. Proposed Licensable Activities and hours: 

 

    

E Live Music (Outdoors) 
 

Fri - Sun 11: 00 – 22:00 

F Recorded Music (Outdoors) 
 

Fri - Sun 11: 00 – 22:00 

G Performance of dance (Outdoors) 
 

Fri - Sun 11: 00 – 22:00 

M Supply of Alcohol (On Sales) 
 

Fri - Sun 12: 00 – 22:00 

O Opening Hours Mon – Sun 
 

06:00 – 00:00 
 

N.B. In relation to school premises the following exemptions apply 

Cross activity exemption  

Is available to Schools and means that a licence is not required between 8am and 11pm, 
with no limit on audience size for any entertainment taking place on the premises of the 
school where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor. 

Third-party music entertainment 

No licence is required for a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music on 
school premises, that are not domestic premises, between 8am and 11pm on any day as 
long as: 

• it is performed in front of an audience of no more than 500 people 

• a person concerned in the organisation or management of the music entertainment 
has been given prior written consent of the local authority, health care provider or school 
proprietor for that entertainment to take place 

Live music Act 2012 

unamplified live music at any place between 8AM and 11PM; or 

amplified live music at a workplace between 8AM and 11PM provided the audience is no 
more than 500 people. 

A licence will always be required for the sale of alcohol. 

 
1

Agenda Item 7



  

Affected Wards: 
 
 

LOOSE 

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 

The Committee is asked to determine the application and decide whether 
to grant the premises licence. 
 
 

Policy Overview: 
 
 

The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance 
and the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. 
Where the decision departs from Policy or Guidance the departure must be 
directed solely at the attainment of the licensing objectives, and that such 
departure be supported by proper reasons. 
 

Financial 
Implications: 
 
 

Costs associated with processing the application are taken from licensing fee 
income. 
 

Other Material 
Implications: 
 
 

HUMAN RIGHTS: In considering this application it is appropriate to consider 
the rights of both the applicant and other parties, such as “responsible 
authorities” and\or “other persons” (objectors). The procedure for 
determining licences has a prescribed format to ensure fair representation of 
the relevant facts by all parties.  
 
LEGAL: Under the Licensing Act 2003 the Licensing Authority has a duty to 
exercise licensing control of relevant premises.  
 

  
Background 
Papers: 
 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
DCMS Guidance Documents issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 as amended 
Maidstone Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

Contacts: 
 

Mrs Lorraine Neale at: lorraineneale@maidstone.gov.uk – tel: 01622 602528 

2

mailto:lorraineneale@maidstone.gov.uk


 

                          

Agenda Item No. 1  
 
Report Title: 
 

THE CORNWALLIS SCHOOL, HUBBARDS LANE, BOUGHTON 
MONCHELSEA, KENT, ME17 4HX 
 
Application: For a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 
(Appendix 1). 

 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
The report advises Members of an application for a Premises Licence to be granted under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Appendix 1), made by Future Schools Trust, in respect of the premises The 
Cornwallis School, Hubbards Lane, Boughton Monchelsea, Kent, ME17 4HX  (Appendix 2 ) in 
respect of which 55 objections and 1 support comment have been received from other parties 
(Appendix 3).   
 

Issue to be Decided 

 
 Members are asked to determine whether to: 

1) grant as applied for 

2) grant with conditions 

3) exclude any licensable activity 

4) reject the DPS 

5) or reject the application. 

 
2     The relevant sections are Part 3 S16 -24 of The Licensing Act 2003 and        
      section 4 of The Licensing Act 2003 in particular the Licensing Objectives: 

• The prevention of crime and disorder. 

• Public Safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance; and  

• The protection of children from harm 

3. The application has been correctly advertised in the local press and notices displayed at the    
  premises for the required period.  

4.  There were no representations received from responsible authorities. 
 

5. There are 56 representation from other parties (Appendix 3).    

6. The table below illustrates the relevant representations which have been received 

No Responsible Authority/Other Party Licensing Objective Associated 
Documents 

Appendix 

1 & 19 Ian Tucker Public Nuisance 
 

E-mail 3 

2 & 39 David Sanderson (representing 
those on the petition included at 
39) 

Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

3



 

                          

3 Steve Moreham Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

4 Tim Jessop Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

5 & 11 Paul Tritton  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

6 Valerie Sanderson Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

7 Freddie Beesley  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

8 Micaela Suarez de Tangil  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

9 Mr & Mrs Forder Children from Harm E-mail 3 

10 Wendy Cook & John Howells Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

12 John and Shirley Price Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

13 Zoe Davidson Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

14 Lara Burn  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

15 John Underwood Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

16 Nigel Luxford Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

17 Sarah Hakeem Public Nuisance 
Children from Harm 

E-mail 3 

18 Lauren Drury  Crime & Disorder 
Public Nuisance 

E-mail 3 

20 Alexandra Jessop Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

21 Mason Levey  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

22 & 32 Debbie Jenning Public Nuisance 
Children from Harm 

E-mail 3 

23 Alison Wiles Public Nuisance 
Children from Harm 

E-mail 3 

24 & 34 Ray Jennings Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

25 & 33 Trevor Wiles Public Safety 
Public Nuisance 

Children from Harm 

E-mail 3 

26 Junaid Ansari Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

27 Harry Armitage  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

28 Malcolm Brockman  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

29 Nicholas King Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

30 Laraine Barrie Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

31 Norman McGill Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

35 Richard Albardiaz Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

36 Allan and Sue Collier Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

37 Sophie Rees Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

38 Graham & Lorraine King Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

40 Hilary Robinson  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

4



 

                          

41 Anne Lomas Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

42 Mr and Mrs Grabham  Crime & Disorder 
Public Nuisance 

Children from Harm 

E-mail 3 

43 Emma Avard Crime & Disorder 
Public Nuisance 

E-mail 3 

44 Sally Bodman Support E-mail 3 

45 MK & V L E Mercer Public Safety 
Public Nuisance 

E-mail 3 

46 Sue Ritzdorf Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

47 Ingrid Dutch  Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

48 Paul Warren Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

49 Ian Brattle Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

50 Lorraine Doherty Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

51 Lyn Dive Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

52 John Bugden (included short 
video) 

Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

53 Nick Wright and Lorraine Doughty Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

54 Kevin Masssam Crime & Disorder 
Public Safety 

Public Nuisance 
Children from Harm 

E-mail 3 

55 Yuyang Zhang Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

56 Mr M and Mrs T Fisher Public Nuisance E-mail 3 

.  

The Licensing Department received an email from the applicant on 8th March 2024 explaining that 

the licence was required to cover the fireworks event in November only as a temporary events notice 

(TEN) would not be sufficient to cover capacity. The matter of the application was to be discussed at a 

Loose Parish Council meeting and so a copy of the letter provided to Loose Parish Council in relation 

to that agenda item was also provided (Appendix 4). On the 3rd April the applicant sent an email to 

Licensing which offered “As a condition of usage, we would propose the licence to be for no more than 4 
events per calendar year” (Appendix 5) This information was circulated on the same date to all the 
objectors. The following objectors responded indicating they would withdraw their representations 
subject to the condition being included on the licence. Tim Jessop, Lara Burn, Debbie Jennings, Ray 

Jennings, Nicholas King, E.Avard, Paul Warren and Lyn Dive (subject to events being single events) 

Members are advised that applications cannot be refused in whole or in part, or conditions 
attached to the licence unless it is appropriate to do so to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

7. The Operating Schedule submitted by the Applicant has addressed the licensing 
objectives in the following manner: 
 

 a)  General – all four licensing objectives:   
 

We shall ensure that all times when the premises are for any licensable activity, there 
are sufficient competent staff on duty at the premises for the purpose of fulfilling the 
terms and conditions of the licence and for preventing crime and disorder. We will 
ensure that all staff will undertake training in their responsibilities in relation to the sale of 
alcohol, particularly with regard to drunkenness and underage persons. Records will be 
kept of training and refresher training. 5

mailto:tanyajfisher@googlemail.com


 

                          

Alls events are aimed at the local community therefore is geared towards families, 
creatives and supporting regenerative farming. We envisage our events being a positive 
environment for children. 
 
 b)  The prevention of crime and disorder:   
 
Any incidents of a criminal nature that may occur on the premises will be reported the 

police. We will install comprehensive CCTV coverage at the premises and it is operated 

and maintained at the premises. Copies will be made available to Police on request. 

 

We will be employing SIA Security Guards who will be on patrol and at the entry and exit 

points at all 

times when the public will be on site. They will also be carrying out searches when 

guests enter the 

arena. Any glass found in the area will be confiscated. 

We have adopted a zero tolerance policy to drugs, violence and social disorder. This will 

be made clear to all guests on booking and again on entry. The bar areas will be selling 

all drinks in plastic cups so no glass or bottles will be used. 

 
c) Public Safety:  
 
Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire extinguishers (foam, H20 
and CO2), fire blanket, internally illuminated fire exit signs, numerous smoke detectors 
and emergency lighting (see enclosed plan for details of locations). All appliances are 
inspected annually. All emergency exits shall be kept free from obstruction at all times. 
 
We have a First Aid tent staffed by a Paramedic and First Aiders to tend to any medical 
issues. This has been situated in easy reach of the access road and emergency exit. 
 
 
 d) The prevention of public nuisance:   

 

 All customers will be asked to leave quietly. Clear and legible notices will be prominently 
displayed to remind customers to leave quietly and have regard to our neighbours. 

 
 e) The Protection of children from harm:   
 

The licensee and staff will ask persons who appear to be under the age of 25 for 

photographic ID such as proof of age cards, the Connexions Card and Citizen Card, 

photographic driving licence or passport, an official identity card issued by HM Forces or 

by an EU country, bearing the photograph and date of birth of bearer. All staff will be 

trained for UNDERAGE SALES PREVENTION regularly. A register of refused sales 

shall be kept and maintained on the premises. 

 

The performers have been reminded that it is a event for all ages and no foul language 

should be used. 

If children do get separated from their parents we have a designated signed area by the 

First Aid tent for a Meeting Point and all stewards will be briefed in safeguarding children 

at this event. 

 

 

8. Relevant sections of The Guidance issued under section 182 of The Licensing Act 2003; 
  

Chapters 8 & 9 Premises Licences & Determining Applications 
  
Chapter 10 Conditions NB: There is Home Office Supporting Guidance on Pools of 
Conditions but this is not statutory guidance. 
 

6



 

                          

Relevant policy statements contained in the Licensing Authority’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy:  

 17.10 Crime and Disorder 
 17.19 Public Safety 
 17.22. Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 17.26 Children from Harm 
  
  

CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER.  

17.10 Under the Act the Licensing Authority has a duty to promote the licensing  

objectives, and, a further duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably 

can to prevent crime and disorder in the borough.   

17.11 Wholesale of alcohol. Since 1 April 2017, businesses which sell alcohol (for 

example, retailers of alcohol and trade buyers) need to ensure that the UK 

wholesalers that they buy alcohol from have been approved by HMRC under the 

Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme (AWRS). They will need to check their 

wholesalers Unique Registration Number (URN) against the HMRC online database. This is 

an ongoing obligation and if a business is found to have bought alcohol from an unapproved 

wholesaler, they may be liable to a penalty or could even face a criminal prosecution and 

their alcohol stock may be seized. Any trader who buys alcohol from a wholesaler for onward 

sale to the general public (known as a ‘trade buyer’) does not need to register unless they 

sell alcohol to other businesses. 

 

17.12 Examples of trade buyers would be pubs, clubs, restaurants, cafes, retailers and 

hotels. However, they will need to check that the wholesaler they purchase alcohol from is 

registered with HMRC. 
 

17.13 The applicant will be expected to detail in their operating schedule how they will 

prevent  crime and disorder on and close to the premises.  Such detail should reflect the 

licensable activities on offer, location and character of the area, the nature of the premises 

use and the range of customers likely to use the premises. 

These may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

•         Prevention of disorderly conduct and anti-social behaviour 

•         Prevention of underage drinking 

•         Prevention of sales of alcohol to intoxicated customers 

•         Prevention of drunkenness both on and in the vicinity of the premises 

•         Prevention of drug use and drug dealing 

•         Restriction to responsible drinks promotions 

•         Use of safety glass 

•         Inclusion of a wind-down time following alcohol sales period 

•         Adequate seating to discourage “vertical drinking” 

•         The offer of food and snacks or other entertainment or occupation to discourage 

persistent drinking 

 

17.14 In busier premises the Licensing Authority would usually expect to see a short 

(e.g.30 mins)  ‘wind down’ or ‘drinking up’  period allowed for after the cessation time of 

entertainment and alcohol sales as this is effective in assisting in a reduction in noise and 

exuberance of customers before leaving the premises.  

17.15 Applicants will be expected to seek advice from the Police and the Licensing 

Authority will give appropriate weight to requests by the Police for premises to be protected 

by SIA registered door staff subject to the provision of relevant evidence. Where the 

Licensing Authority determines after consultation with the police that a premises is one that 

warrants additional security and monitoring it would expect applicants to include the 7



 

                          

provision of SIA approved door staff at the premises at appropriate times.  Relevant 

premises are usually those used mainly for drinking alcohol, have later opening hours and 

are situated within the Town Centre night time economy area.   

17.16 Where appropriate, applicants for licences in the Town Centre areas providing 

mainly alcohol, music and dancing would be expected to consider  inclusion of  a provision 

of safety glasses to prevent a risk of injury on the rare occasion that a glass may be used as 

a weapon. 

17.17 The use of CCTV should be considered where appropriate or on the advice and 

recommendations of the Police and to a quality and standard approved by the Police for 

evidential  purposes.  Licensees will be expected to fully comply with the requirements of the 

Information Commissioners Office and the Data Protection Act 1998 in respect of any 

surveillance equipment installed at a premises. 

17.18 In any application resulting in hearing the sub-committee will consider each 

application on its individual merits and determine the imposition of conditions that are 

appropriate to promotion of the licensing objectives. 

CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE PUBLIC SAFETY.   

 

17.19 The applicant will be expected to show how the physical safety of persons   

attending the premises will be protected and to offer any appropriate steps in the operating 

schedule to promote this. 

17.20 Such steps will not replace the statutory obligation on the applicant to comply with 

all relevant legislation under the Health and Safety at Work etc.  Act 1973 or under the 

Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2004. 

17.21 Applicants will be expected to have carried out the necessary risk assessments to 

ensure safe occupancy levels for the premises.  Where a representation from the Fire 

Authority suggests that for the promotion of the Public Safety objective a maximum 

occupancy should be applied, the Licensing Authority will consider adding such a limit as a 

licence condition. 

Where appropriate an operating schedule should specify occupancy limits for the following 

types of licensed premises: 

(i) High Volume Vertical Drinking e.g. premises that provide mainly stand up drinking 

facilities with limited seating/table space and the primary activity is the sale of 

alcohol.  

(ii) Nightclubs 

(iii) Cinemas 

(iv) Theatres. 

(v) Other premises where regulated entertainment is likely to attract a large number of 

people. 

(vi) Where conditions of occupancy have arisen due to representations received. 
 
CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE.   

17.22 The applicant will be expected to detail any appropriate and proportionate steps to 

 prevent nuisance and disturbance arising from the licensable activities at the premises and 

from the customers using the premises. 

17.23 The applicant will be expected to demonstrate that they have considered the 

 following and included steps to prevent public nuisance: 

 (i) Proximity of local residents to the premises 

 (ii) Licensable activities proposed and customer base 8



 

                          

 (iii) Hours and nature of operation 

 (iv) Risk and Prevention of noise leakage from the premises from equipment,   

   customers and machinery 

 (v) Prevention of noise from customers leaving the premises and customer   

   pick up points outside premises and from the Car Park. 

 (vi) Availability of public transport to and from the premises 

 (vii) Delivery and collection times and locations. 

 (viii) Impact of external security or general lighting on residents. 

 (ix) History of management of and complaints about the premises. 

 (x) Applicant’s previous success in preventing Public Nuisance. 

 (xi) Outcomes of discussions with the relevant Responsible Authorities. 

 (xii) Impact of location, noise and contamination from outside smoking areas   

   on neighbours and other customers 

 (xiii) Collection of litter arising from the premises 

17.24 Steps to prevent public nuisance may include a range of options including noise  

 limiting devices, sound insulation, wind down periods, acoustic lobbies, 

 management of smoking areas etc.  

17.25 Steps will differ depending on the individual premises and activities and it is for the 

applicant to ensure that reasonable, effective and appropriate steps are included within 

the operating schedule. 

CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM.   

17.26 Applicants will be expected to detail any appropriate and proportionate steps to protect 

children at the premises from any harm. The Licensing Authority recognises the right of 

licensees (serving alcohol) to allow accompanied children into their premises.  The 

Licensing Authority would not seek to restrict access by children (above that specified 

in the Act) unless it is necessary for the prevention of physical, moral or psychological 

harm. 

 

17.27 Steps to protect children from harm must be carefully considered for inclusion where: 

(i) There is entertainment or services of an adult nature provided. 

(ii) There have been previous convictions for under age sales of alcohol. 

(iii) There has been a known association with drug taking or dealing. 

(iv) There is a significant element of gambling on the premises. 

(v) There is a presumption that children under 18 should not be permitted entry 

such as to nightclubs (apart from when specific events are held for under 18’s). 

(vi) Outcomes of discussions with relevant Responsible Authorities suggest such 

steps are applicable. 

9



 

                          

17.28 Nothing in the Licensing Act prevents licensees from excluding children from a 

licensed premises and no condition can be added to require the admission of children.   

17.29 Where there are no matters that give rise to concern in respect of children at premises 

the Licensing Authority would expect to see the relevant box on an application form 

completed to specify NONE. 

10     Options 
 
Legal options open to members –  
 

 1. Grant the licence subject to conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule    
     accompanying the application. 

2. Grant the licence with modified conditions  

3. Exclude a licensable activity 

4. Refuse to specify the DPS 

 5. REJECT the whole or part of the application  

Members of the Licensing Act 2003 – Licensing Sub – Committee are reminded of their duty 
under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime and disorder 
implications of their decisions and the Licensing Authority’s responsibility to co – operate in the 
reduction of crime and disorder in the Borough 
 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1988 states: 
 
"Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each authority to 
which this section applies to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of 
the exercise of those function on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can prevent, crime 
and disorder in its area”. 
 

11. Implications Assessment 
 
The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of State’s Guidance and the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003.  Where the decision 
departs from either the Guidance or the policy clear and cogent reasons must be given.  
Members should be aware that if such a departure is made the risk of appeal/challenge is 
increased. 
 

12. Human Rights 
 
While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular relevance to the 
application are: 
 

• Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life 

• Article 1 of the First Protocol – Protection of Property 

• Article 6(1) – Right to Fair Hearing 

• Article 10 – Freedom of Expression 
 
The full text of each Article is given in the attached Appendices  

 
13. Conclusion 

 
Members must ensure that the application is considered on its merits, as well as against the 
relevant guidance, policy and statutory framework. 
 10



 

                          

14. List of Appendices 
 

  Appendix 1 Application Form 
  Appendix 2 Plan of Premises  
  Appendix 3      Other parties representation. 
  Appendix 4 Applicants email  
  Appendix 5 Applicants offer of condition 
  Appendix 6 Plan of area  
  Appendix 7 Human Rights Articles  
  Appendix 8 Order of Proceedings 
 

15. Appeals 
 
The applicant or any other person(objector) may appeal the Licensing Act 2003 Sub 
Committee’s decision within 21 days beginning with the day on which the Appellant is 
notified.  All/any appeals must be lodged with the Magistrates’ Court.  Parties should be 
aware that they MAY incur an Adverse Costs Order should they bring an appeal. 

 
 

 

 
Contact: 
Email: 
 

 
Senior Licensing Officer 
lorraineneale@maidstone.gov.uk  

 

11

mailto:lorraineneale@maidstone.gov.uk


Licensing Authority: 

Ref:

Part 1 - Premises Details 

 Postal address of premises or, if none,
ordnance survey map reference or
description

 Post town

 Post code

Telephone number of premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises  £

Part 2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as 

Please make

selection with an "x"

a) An individual or individuals* please complete section (A)

b) a person other than an individual*

i as a limited company please complete section (B)

ii. as a partnership please complete section (B)

iii. as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

c) A recognised club please complete section (B)

d) a charity please complete section (B)

 Application for a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes found at bottom of Page 4 of this form.

Use the blank page at the end of the form to provide further details if necessary. 

When it is complete you can submit the form directly  to us - click on the Submit Form button. 

You may wish to print and keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

For help information about filling in this type of electronic form, click on the help information button.

 Page 2

I / We  apply for a premises licence

under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

(the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing

authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

If the premises is under construction please
check here

If the premises hasn't been assigned a
rateable value yet, please check here

Future Schools Trust

Maidstone Borough Council

The Cornwallis School Feilds
Hubbards Lane 
Boughton Monchelsea

Maidstone

ME17 4HX

01622 743152

X

X

The Licensing Partnership

Licensing Partnership
P.O. Box 182
Sevenoaks
Kent  TN13 1GP

APPENDIX 1

12



e) please complete section (B)

f) please complete section (B)

g) please complete section (B)

h) please complete section (B)

the proprietor of an educational establishment

a health service body

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital

the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which
involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or

I am making the application pursuant to a:

Please make

selection with an "x"

- statutory function or

- a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Surname First names

Are you 18 years
or older?

Current postal 
address 
if different from 
premises address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

Email address
(optional)

Date of BirthYes

No

Title

 Page 3

Nationality

X

X

You do not have to answer the questions
in this section.

13

jlockie
Typewriter
------



SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (IF APPLICABLE)

Surname First names

Current postal 
address 
if different from 
premises address

Post Town

Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

Email address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where appropriate please give
any registered number.  In case of a partnership or other joint nature (other than a body
corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name

Address

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example,
partnership, company, unincorporated
association etc.)

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Date of Birth 
(you must be 18
years old or over)

Title

 Page 4

Nationality

Future Schools Trust

Cornwallis Academy, 
Hubbards Lane,
Maidstone, Kent,
ME17 4HX

06272751

Company limited by guarantee.

01622 743152

14



Part 3 - Operating Schedule

If 5,000 or more people attend the premises at any one time, please state the number
expected to attend

General description of premises (please read guidance note 1)

When do you want the premises licence to start?

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?

 Page 5

01/10/2023

School site primarily for the purpose of educating students aged 11 to 18/19. With community 
events that exceed a TEN.

The premises we would like to hold our event on is the events field at Cornwallis Academy, it 
is large field in a rural situation with no immediate residential neighbours. It has two roads
accessing the planned entrance points which lends itself to avoiding congestion as visitors
arrive and leave. 

We would like to sell alcohol on the site from a beer tent, and from trade stalls held by local 
producers. There will be temporary seating areas all around the venue and round the food 
and bar areas.

We would also like to play live music amplified and unamplified and recorded music 
amplified. 

The whole time the site is open to the public all required health and safety procedures will be 
in operation as well as SIA Security Guards on patrol.

15



What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?  
(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedule 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act
2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment  (if ticking yes, fill in box L)

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box M)

In all cases complete boxes N, O and P

Please check all

relevant boxes

 Page 6

X

X

X

X

16



E

Will the performance of live music take place
indoors or outdoors 
or both - please make selection with an "x"
(please read guidance note 3).

Live music 
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 7)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Mon

Tue

State any seasonal variations for performance of live music (please read guidance
note 5)Wed

Thur

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the performance
of live music at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

F
Will the playing of recorded music take place
indoors or outdoors 
or both - please make selection with an "x"
(please read guidance note 3).

Recorded music 
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 7)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Mon

Tue

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music (please read guidance note 5)
Wed

Thur

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the playing of
recorded music entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

 Page 9

X

1100 2200

1100 2200

1100 2200

X

1100 2200

1100 2200

1100 2200

17

jlockie_1
Typewriter
-------

jlockie_2
Typewriter
X

jlockie_3
Typewriter
-------

jlockie_4
Typewriter
X



G
Performance of dance 
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 7)

Will the performance of dance take place indoors
or outdoors 
or both - please make selection with an "x"
(please read guidance note 3).

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Mon

Tue

Wed

Thur

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the performance
of dance entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

H
Anything of a similar
description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g) 
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing

IndoorsWill the entertainment take place indoors or
outdoors or both - please make selection with an "x"
(please read guidance note 3).

Day Start Finish Outdoors

Both
Mon

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g) (please read guidance note 5)Thur

Fri

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for entertainment of a
similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed
in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

 Page 10

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read guidance
note 5)

X

11:00 22:00

11:00 22:00

11:00 22:00

18

jlockie_5
Typewriter
-------

jlockie_6
Typewriter
X



M

Supply of alcohol 
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 7)

On the premisesWill the supply of alcohol be for consumption 
please make selection with an "x"  
(please read guidance note 8).

Off the premises

Day Start Finish Both

Mon

State any proposed seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read
guidance note 5)Tue

Wed

Thur

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of
alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
premises supervisor. (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at
the end of the form):

Title

Address

Postcode

Personal Licence number (if known)

Issuing licensing authority (if known)

 Page 13

Surname

First Name(s)

Date of Birth

Please print the 'Consent of individual to being specified as premises supervisor' form

(shown on pages 19 and 20), and have the person specified above sign and confirm the

details given.

X

1200 2200

1200 2200

1200 2200

Mr

Dadson

Mason

23/03018/LAPER

Maidstone Borough Council

19



N

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use
of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read guidance note 9)

O
Hours premises are open
to the public 
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 7)

State any seasonal variation (please read guidance note 5)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed
Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the
public at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

 Page 14

06:00 00:00

06:00 00:00

06:00 00:00

06:00 00:00

06:00 00:00

06:00 00:00

06:00 00:00

NOT APPLICABLE

20



P Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) (please read guidance note 10)

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

c) Public safety

d) The prevention of public nuisance

e) The protection of children from harm

 Page 15

We shall ensure that all times when the premises are for any licensable activity, there are sufficient 
competent staff on duty at the premises for the purpose of fulfilling the terms and conditions of the 
licence and for preventing crime and disorder. We will ensure that all staff will undertake training in their 
responsibilities in relation to the sale of alcohol, particularly with regard to drunkenness and underage 
persons. Records will be kept of training and refresher training.

Alls events are aimed at the local community therefore is geared towards families, creatives and 
supporting regenerative farming. We envisage our events being a positive environment for children. 

Any incidents of a criminal nature that may occur on the premises will be reported the police. We will 
install comprehensive CCTV coverage at the premises and it is operated and maintained at the premises. 
Copies will be made available to Police on request

We will be employing SIA Security Guards who will be on patrol and at the entry and exit points at all 
times when the public will be on site. They will also be carrying out searches when guests enter the 
arena.  Any glass found in the area will be confiscated. 
We have adopted a zero tolerance policy to drugs, violence and social disorder. This will be made clear 
to  all guests on booking and again on entry. The bar areas will be selling all drinks in plastic cups so no 
glass or bottles will be used. 

Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire extinguishers (foam, H20 and CO2), fire 
blanket, internally illuminated fire exit signs, numerous smoke detectors and emergency lighting (see 
enclosed plan for details of locations). All appliances are inspected annually. All emergency exits shall 
be kept free from obstruction at all times.

We have a First Aid tent staffed by a Paramedic and First Aiders to tend to any medical issues. This has 
been situated in easy reach of the access road and emergency exit.

All customers will be asked to leave quietly. Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed to
remind customers to leave quietly and have regard to our neighbours.

The licensee and staff will ask persons who appear to be under the age of 25 for photographic ID such as 
proof of age cards, the Connexions Card and Citizen Card, photographic driving licence or passport, an 
official identity card issued by HM Forces or by an EU country, bearing the photograph and date of birth 
of bearer. All staff will be trained for UNDERAGE SALES PREVENTION regularly. A register of refused 
sales shall be kept and maintained on the premises.

The performers have been reminded that it is a event for all ages and no foul language should be used. 
If children do get separated from their parents we have a designated signed area by the First Aid tent for 
a Meeting Point and all stewards will be briefed in safeguarding children at this event. 

21



IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT. 

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE
REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE
WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL
PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME
ACT, WILL BE COMMITING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 5 - Declaration (please read guidance note 11)

Confirmation of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance
note 12) If confirming on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Confirmation

Date

For joint applications confirmation of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised
agent. (please read guidance note 13) If confirming on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity.

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 14)

 Post Town

 Postcode

 Telephone number (if any)

 If you would prefer us to
correspond with you by e-mail
your e-mail address (optional)

I have enclosed the plan of the premises

I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be premises
supervisor, if applicable

I understand that I must now advertise my application

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected

Please make

selection with an "x"

 Page 16

Name

Capacity

Confirmation

DateName

Capacity

Name

Address

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not a limited
liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships.] I have included
documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note
15).

• [Applicable to all individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I
am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a condition
preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I cease to be
entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

• The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK, (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing
work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if appropriate (please see note
15).

X

X

X

X

X

X

Mason Dadson

Marketing & Events Manager

04/09/2023

Please print the 'Consent of individual to being specified as premises supervisor form
(shown on pages 19 and 20), and have the person specified above sign and confirm the
details given.

We/ 

We/ 
01622
743121

22



Use this page if there is any other information that you think we should know about. 
Information entered on this page will be sent to us, along with the data on the rest of the form when you
use the "Submit" option.

 Page 17

23



Notes for Guidance are available online

 Page 18

24



W

H
as

te
 H

ill

HUBBAR
N

O
H

Path

MCALPINE CRES

A229
Pa

th

Pa
th

10
2m

EL AD
S

ML

Tr
ac

k

H
A

N
S

O
N

 D

AC

P
W

E S
OL

C

S' NA MR

S

ST

RE
H

E
U

N
E

V

N
or

th
Lo

dg
e

A
S'

TL
A

S

E

Tr
ac

k

Track

C
or

nw
al

lis
A

ca
de

m
y

Tr
ac

k

Tr
ac

k

Track

11
3m

Li
nt

on
P

ar
k 

S
ch

oo
l

P
W

AL S' D

11
2m

W

H
as

te
 H

ill

HUBBAR

O
H

Path

MCALPINE CRES

A229

Pa
th

EL AD

S
ML

H
A

N
S

O
N

 D

AC

P
W

E S
OL

C

S' NA MR

E
U

N
E

V

N
or

th
Lo

dg
e

E
as

t

A
S'

TL
A

S kcarT

Track

C
or

nw
al

lis
A

ca
de

m
y

Tr
ac

k

Tr
ac

k

Track

11
3m

Li
nt

on
loohc

S kra
P

P
W

AL S' D

11
2m

AU
TH

OR

TI
TL

E

PR
OJ

EC
T

DR
AW

IN
G 

No

SC
AL

E
SI

ZE

RE
VI

SI
ON

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT
S

Su
rfa

cin
g S

tan
da

rd
s L

TD

1.
DO

 N
OT

 S
CA

LE
 F

RO
M 

DR
AW

IN
G.

 A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

ON
S 

TO
 B

E 
CH

EC
KE

D 
ON

 S
IT

E 
PR

IO
R 

TO
CO

MM
EN

CE
ME

NT
 O

F 
W

OR
KS

.
2.

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
IS

 C
OP

YR
IG

HT
 T

O 
SU

RF
AC

IN
G 

ST
AN

DA
RD

S 
LT

D
3.

AL
L P

ER
SO

NN
EL

 S
HO

UL
D 

BE
 A

W
AR

E 
OF

 T
HE

 H
EA

LT
H 

AN
D 

SA
FE

TY
 P

LA
N 

W
HI

CH
 IS

RE
TA

IN
ED

 IN
 T

HE
 S

IT
E 

MA
NA

GE
RS

 O
FF

IC
E

RE
V

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

CK
DA

TE
RE

V

Co
rn

wa
llis

 A
ca

de
m

y, 
Ke

nt
Cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

Ar
tifi

cia
l G

ra
ss

 P
itc

h

Co
rn

wa
llis

 A
ca

de
m

y, 
Ke

nt
Cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

Ar
tifi

cia
l G

ra
ss

 P
itc

h

SS
30

28

01
53

6 4
00

 01
2

Ay
sto

n R
oa

d, 
Up

pin
gh

am
, L

E1
5 9

NY
Of

fic
e 2

, E
mp

ing
ha

m 
Ho

us
e, A1

00

1:
12

50

M
E

02

Si
te

 L
oc

at
ion

 P
lan

00
PL

AN
NI

NG
 IS

SU
E

M
E

W
B

24
.0

2.
22

��
�

��
�

��
��

�

��
��

APPENDIX 2

25



APPENDIX 3

26



27



vehicle horns.  This is also not being adhered to and further disrup�on is caused a�er the official end �me by 
people and vehicles not leaving the site quietly. 

 

Effect on Local Residents 

The noise from Cornwallis is a growing en�ty which is having a huge impact on local residents.  Many of us are 
unable to use and enjoy our gardens because we are driven inside during events and ac�vi�es.  We are unable 
to have our windows open and even with them shut, music, tannoys, shou�ng and whistles can o�en be heard 
in every room of the house.  Some people have moved house, ci�ng the disrup�on to their lives as a 
contributory factor and others are openly considering having to move house.  My wife is in tears at the thought 
of this applica�on being approved. 

 

I have no faith, based on previous experience with the School, that they will be able or willing to comply with 
any noise restric�ons that are imposed in rela�on to this licence applica�on. 

 

To Conclude.  

This applica�on will significantly nega�vely affect many local residents who are already having to suffer a real 
loss of peace and enjoyment of their own homes.  There used to be no noise or light pollu�on here at all and 
now, the events being held at the Cornwallis site are having a major nega�ve impact on residents and the 
quality of our lives. 

 

I request that the applica�on is refused. 

 

David Sanderson 

 

 

Please redact personal informa�on if this is published. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



29



30



 

 

 

 
Re: Letter of objection to Cornwallis Premises Permit Application - 23/03156/LAPRE 
 

Dear Sir/ Madam 

We have just (2/3/24) seen the no�ce regarding the applica�on for license for Cornwallis Academy 
dated 12 February.  Normally the school no�fies residents of such an ac�vity but disappoin�ngly they 
failed to do in this case as so did Maidstone Borough Council.  This is a significant change of use and 
this leter is our strong objec�on for the following reasons.  In the past the school has submited 
individual applica�ons for 2 or 3 events a year.  These have caused the local residents excessive noise 
and disrup�on but we have reluctantly had to live with it.  This applica�on, if approved, gives the 
school a free hand to cause us noise and disrup�on every weekend (Friday to Sunday) for 52 weeks of 
the year.  The prospect of this is already the cause of significant anxiety and stress. 

Loca�on 

This is a quiet residen�al area and is valued by its inhabitants for the peace and quiet. 

Given our knowledge of previous event loca�ons, we live approximately 200m away and are elevated 
by approximately 20m. We are therefore in direct line of sight for noise and lights.  There must be 
over 200 houses within a close proximity contrary to Part 3 of the applica�on “in a rural loca�on with 
no immediate neighbours” This is in error. 

Current problems 

We are already in dispute with the school and supported by the council for current noise levels 
generated by the 3G pitch which operates 7 days a week (day�me and night �me). 

The school is currently in breach of some of the planning condi�ons for this development.  The key 
issues are acous�c screening not complete, breaking no whistle policy and noisy traffic before and 
a�er matches in evening 

School Track record 

The school has not addressed our current noise concerns, we have no confidence in them 
administering such a large task which can very easily get out of hand. If so, neighbouring proper�es 
would be at risk.   

 

Yours sincerely 

S J Moreham  

 

Copy sent to the above email and on-line 

The Licensing Partnership 
P.O.Box 182 
Sevenoaks 
Kent 
TN13 1GP 
Licensing@sevenoaks.gov.uk 
 

 

 

 

4 March 2024 

31



4 
From: Tim Jessop  
Sent: Sunday, March 3, 2024 4:59 PM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Cornwallis School 
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
I understand that Cornwallis school have applied for an outside amplified music and alcohol licence every 
Friday,Saturday and Sunday from 11am to 10pm. 
I strongly object to this applica�on as the school already disrupt our peace with football noise most evenings 
and weekends . 
If the licence is approved then our lives here in will be a complete misery every day of the week ! 
Please do not approve this applica�on. . 
Tim Jessop 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



33



34



would be intolerable. We live in a quiet, private road but our quality of life has already 
been greatly reduced with the football noise, shou�ng, whistles (against planning policy) 
and the noise of spectators, seven days a week.  
It is totally outrageous that I will not be able to sit in my garden, of my dream house in 
peace and tranquillity at weekends with what the school propose should this license be 
granted. The school are misleading the commitee if they claim that there will not be an 
impact on local residents. 

 
Kind regards  

  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



36



37



38



39



40



12 

From:  
Sent: Monday, March 4, 2024 2:34 PM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: permit applica�on 23/03156/LAPRE 
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
Cornwallis Premises Permit Applica�on 23/03256/LAPRE 
 
To whom it concerns 
 
With reference to the above applica�on for a license which would allow amplified music and the sale of 
alcoholic drink 3 days a week at the Cornwallis football ground, we cannot believe anyone could suggest that 
there would be no households which would be affected, as stated on the applica�on! 
It must be blatantly obvious, given the amount of feedback from local residents concerning the aggrava�on 
caused by the shou�ng from the pitches, that any appreciable addi�on to the noise would certainly affect the 
locality. 
You could be fooled into believing, because opposite to the school is a wooded area, that the noise would not 
affect anyone. Let me assure you that if you care to look in any other direc�on there are many peace loving 
residents who would be catastrophically affected. 
The management of the football ground have acknowledged that there is a noise problem by the decision to 
plant a noise limi�ng tree line (no we don't believe this will make any difference any more than they do!), how 
can they now say that amplified music will not compound the problem? 
It is obvious why the local residents had to find out about the applica�on by word of mouth rather than being 
consulted. It illustrates perfectly the total disregard for the  quality of life afforded to the locality, since the 
concept of the pitches was conceived. 
Please reject this applica�on on the grounds of Public Nuisance, it is the only logical choice! 
 
Regards 
 
John and Shirley Price 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



20 
From: Alexandra Jessop  
Sent: 05 March 2024 14:01 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: 
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
Re:  Cornwallis Premises Applica�on 23/03156/LAPRE 
 
I wish to wholeheartedly reject this applica�on.  We already have disturbance from the school when they have 
football matches, celebra�ons with load music, and the large lights erected there.  This is a long established 
residen�al area, and I feel it is greatly unfair to expect residents to accept this plan.  The school is on the top of 
Linton hill, so the sound rolls down over each side of the road. I feel when it’s warm and residents have their 
windows open, it will be unbearable. 
 
Yours sincerely,  Alexandra Jessop,   
 
Sent from my  iPad 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50



51



52



53



24 

From: Raymond  
Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 2:33 AM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Applica�on for license for Cornwallis school 23/03156/LAPRE 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

I would like to object for the following reasons a litle while go the school had all season pitch added for the 
pupils which was great only to find them being used late in to the evening by others if a licence is approved will 
this also be an excuse to turn it in to a social club it is a school at the end of the day plus the thought of 
amplified music late in to the night is hard to bare. 

I would be grateful if you could take my objec�ons into considera�on 

Ray Jennings 
 

Sent from my iPhone 

54



55



 
 

  

Sent with Spark 

56



57



27 

From: Harry Armitage  
Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 11:42 AM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Cornwallis Premises Licence Applica�on 23/03156/LAPRE 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 I would like to lodge my 
objec�on to the school’s applica�on for an outside amplified music and alcohol licence. Having experienced it 
previously when they have charity runs, fun fairs etc there is a very high level of noise which is very intrusive. 
This is supposed to be a semi-rural area a�er all. Also, these ac�vi�es give rise to a greatly increased level of 
traffic which is undesirable. 
Harry Armitage 
Sent from my iPad 

58



59



29 

From: Nicholas King  
Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 2:41 PM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Cornwallis premises licence applica�on 23/03156/lapre 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Hello. 
As much as i like the convenience of living near Cornwallis for my children who go there. I’m very concerned 
about the issuing of an alcohol license and load music especially on a Sunday. So there for I would like to object 
to this . 
Thank you 
Nick 

60



30 

From: Laraine Barrie  
Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 2:59 PM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Cornwallis Premises Licence Applica�on 23/03156/LAPRE 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Dear Sir or Madam 

I would like to strongly object to Cornwallis having an amplified music licence and alcohol licence as we already 
suffer noise from the football most evenings and weekends and any of their school events to date have been 
very noisy from music and permi�ng an alcohol licence could promote unreasonable behaviour and become a 
very unpleasant place to live. 
Yours sincerely 
Laraine Barrie 

61



62



63



64



65



66



67



37 

From: Sophie R  
Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2024 1:04 PM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: CORNWALLIS 23/03156/LAPRE 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

****I WOULD JUST LIKE TO ADD THAT I AM SHOCKED THAT CORNWALLIS SCHOOL HAVE STATED IN THE 
APPLICATION THAT THEY HAVE NO IMMEDIATE NEIGHBOURS WHEN THE FIELDS FENCE LINE IS ON OUR 
FENCELINE, NOT TO MENTION THE HOUSE BEHIND US AND THE OVER 60’s FLATS/ BUNGALOWS IS ALSO 
ALONG THE SAME FENCELINE TO THE FIELD IN QUESTION. *** 

Re; CORNWALLIS 23/03156/LAPRE 

06/03/2024 

To whom it may concern, 

It has been brought to our aten�on that Cornwallis school have submited an applica�on to yourselves and we 
would absolutely like to OBJECT to this. 

Our reasons are the fact that the loud noise goes on most nights �l gone 10pm already, The loud shou�ng, 
swearing and bright lights through our windows etc is really affec�ng my mental health. It’s affec�ng our whole 
family. This is with our windows shut! We have two people with au�sm in our house and you can imagine the 
impact this is having on them. 

It’s totally unfair on our whole neighbourhood and something needs to stop. 

Kindest Regards 
Miss Rees 

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



40 

 

From: Hilary Robinson  
Sent: Friday, March 8, 2024 9:45 AM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Cornwallis Premises Licence Applica�on 23/03156/LAPRE 
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
I’d like to lodge my objec�on to the above applica�on. 
I live  on a very busy road that is very noisy, by gran�ng this 
applica�on not only will it add to the noise level at weekends and evenings, it will also add to it with 
very loud music and shou�ng, increased alcohol use which will increase an�social behaviour and 
liter. We already have liter dropped on the road when students leave school, pop in the local garage 
for snacks and the rubbish gets discarded along the hedgerows. 
If this is allowed to go ahead it will impacked on the local residents, the natural environment and 
increased air  pollu�on due to increased amount of vehicles. 
Yours sincerely 
Mrs H M Robinson 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 78



79



80



loca�on adjacent to two extremely busy heavily trafficked roads.   The risks are obvious from the 
addi�onal traffic generated at night at the weekend in a rural loca�on and increase risk of drinking 
and driving in a loca�on where there is litle or no public transport. 

2) The protec�on of children from harm 

The school has approximately 1370 pupils of which probably 5% are eligible to drink alcohol.  It 
therefore seems astonishing that the school wishes to create an ethos of the availability of 
alcohol at school events when virtually none of the students can legally drink it .  Gran�ng this 
license will encourage those parents who have said about this applica�on on Facebook “ LM .. “I 
could easily stagger home “ and TO “Definitely every mum needs a wine at school events .” is this 
the a�tude you want to encourage in parents? This seems to fundamentally go against the 
school's stated  ethos. 

3) The prevention of public nuisance 

This plan is going to create a massive public nuisance. Most schools apply for temporary licenses 
to hold occasional school events.  New Line Learning are not honest or transparent about why 
they need an indefinite alcohol and music license for all day every Friday, Saturday and Sunday of 
the year including bank holidays and Sundays to conduct these events and as neighbours once 
again we are suffering from their thoughtlessness and an�-social behaviour. 

Kids are camping in the school grounds every year and kids play sports and we have no problem 
with any of that.    

The disrup�on isn’t just to humans.  The local wildlife of badgers, foxes, bats and squirrels and 
other woodland creatures who live in the grounds find the fireworks display as terrifying as our 
cat does who is shaking from start to finish with fear and will probably have a shortened life 
expectancy as a result.  

The school ignores the well-being or health of its close neighbours including young children who 
are trying to get some rest and peace in their own homes.  None of the school staff have homes 
neighbouring so of course they don’t care and intend to outsource all responsibility to external 
contractors.  The school has already evidenced its disinterest in working with the community. 

 

We request this applica�on is blocked and if the school wants occasional one-off licences they should 
apply for a one off licence like all other schools. 

Mr and Mrs Grabham  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 81



82



44 

From: Sally Bodman   
Sent: Sunday, March 10, 2024 8:04 PM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Cornwallis License Applica�on 23/03156/LAPRE 
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
I am wri�ng with the following comments with regards this applica�on. 
 

 I was ini�ally concerned as to what this might mean. Having actually 
communicated with the school I understand this to be primarily to enable them to con�nue to run 
the annual fireworks night. This is currently I believe run under a TEN - it is a well run event and 
nearby residents are given months of no�ce of the date and �mes. 
 
Given rising costs I completely understand that in order to con�nue running this event the school 
would need to increase income by selling more �ckets. I fully appreciate that they are limited in this 
by a TEN and so their reasons for seeking a license for this make complete sense. On this basis I fully 
support it. 
 
I also understand that having some degree of flex to allow other community events makes sense. 
 
I would suggest that to allay local fears some kind of maximum number of events could be included  
in the license. Or it could be made very clear that this is for community or school events only? 
 
These fears have been in many ways created by individuals sugges�ng somewhat ridiculous scenarios 
such as the school using this license to hold wedding recep�ons, fireworks and funfairs “every and all 
Friday, Saturday and Sundays”. Whilst I personally doubt as an example that there are many young 
couples wan�ng to celebrate the most important day of their life in the shadow of Cornwallis the 
circula�on of ideas like this has raised concerns for some. Leaflets have been dropped through doors 
and people approached to sign a pe��on and to object using this email. This campaign has not to my 
knowledge sought to gather facts and it is a shame that fears have been raised based upon 
assump�ons. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Sally Bodman 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
83



45 

 

From: Valerie Mercer   
Sent: Sunday, March 10, 2024 10:21 PM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Cornwallis Premises Licence Applica�on 23/03156/LAPRE  
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
We object to this applica�on on the basis that it will cause considerable disturbance  to a large 
number of residents over 3days every weekend.  There is a large amount of traffic including large 
Lorrie’s that use the approach roads to the school. The changes to Linton crossroads to make them 
safer have been put on hold,  there have been fatali�es at these crossroads and their approaches. 
 
MK & V L E Mercer 
Sent from my iPad 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 84



85



there are no direct neighbours, .  
 
It is also a lie to say traffic will not be caused, as this is already a current issue, 
with Cornwallis needing to remind/reprimand parents not to park on Penny 
Close property.  
 
The application states 10pm finishes, including Sundays, which is wholly 
unacceptable!  
 

  
we would be most negatively impacted. We will take this further, if these 
changes are approved. 
 
It is additionally very upsetting and disappointing, that an unsigned note in our 
postbox, has informed us of this application, not in fact Cornwallis, who should 
have respect for their neighbours! 
 
It's one thing to buy a property opposite a school, and knowing a small 
disruption this could cause, it is a totally different issue, then having a property 
opposite a club. The school has already added floodlights, to allow for later 
football practise, which already causes light pollution. 
 
This change, will have a direct negative impact on the re-sellability of the 
property, so not only causing a direct negative impact short-term, but also an 
economic impact in the long-term. 
 
Where will this end? That Cornwallis is a full football club and business instead 
of a school? 

 
Kind regards  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
86



87



88



Regarding parking, as happens during "school run hours", there will be the opportunity for 
parents/users to park indiscriminately in Hubbards Lane and (on many occasions) in the Penny Close 
access road. It seems that this is exacerbated by the fact that there is insufficient parking within the 
school grounds. Disrup�on will be greater for events with a considerable and poten�ally an unlimited 
audience. 

Traffic issues always arise during "school run hours", again due to the large volumes of cars and, as 
above, this disrup�on will increase during large audience events. 

In summary, a blanket licence covering EVERY weekend day throughout the year is not appropriate. A 
temporary licence for each planned event (as men�oned above this appears to be ONLY the annual 
fireworks event) means that neighbours can review the licence as and when it is required. 

Incidentally, the fact that this applica�on was made was not no�fied directly to us at  
and neither have any previous temporary licence applica�ons. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 89



90



91



92



 

 

 

 

52 

From: John Bugden   
Sent: 11 March 2024 16:59 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Ref. Cornwallis 23/03156/LAPRE 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
Hello 
I would like to convey my deep concerns for the latest development at the Cornwallis Academy 

 My name is John Bugden . A�er what’s been 
a trauma�c few months with the introduc�on of late night noise and bright lights. My heart dropped 
to see another applica�on to sell alcohol un�l 10 pm at night. 
 
We’ve already lost all rights to peaceful down�me in our own homes a�er having late night football 
matches imposed on us seven days a week. I just couldn’t believe it could get any worse un�l seeing 
this latest applica�on. 
 
The Academy has already lied about the use of whistles, noise levels and ligh�ng claiming that won’t 
affect the residents. It’s had a huge impact on many of our lives and our concerns are brushed to the 
side as a nuisance. We have extremely abusive screaming and swearing coming through our windows 
late into the night. Please see an example below of a Sunday night. We have a laser like glare shining 
onto the back of our house. The Academy claim to have adjusted the angle of the lights but the 
shining glare is s�ll extremely invasive. All of the previous assurances during the planning stages have 
proven to be lies so you’ll forgive me for not trus�ng anything they promise. 
 
I’m vehemently opposed to this latest applica�on on the grounds that it would cause even more 
misery to all of the surrounding residents who have to deal with this burden. Please do not allow this 
injus�ce to take place. 

93



94



95



Page | 1 
 

Kevin Massam 

 

 

 

11th March 2024 

 

The Licensing Team 

Maidstone House 

King Street 

Maidstone 

ME15 6JQ 

 

Objection to Licensing Application 23/03156/LAPRE- Future Schools Trust - The Cornwallis School 

Hubbards Lane, Boughton Monchelsea, Kent ME17 4HX  

 

I am writing to formally object to the recent application made by Future Schools Trust for a premises licence 

located at The Cornwallis School Fields, Hubbards Lane, Boughton Monchelsea, directly behind my property 

at 26 Salts Avenue, Loose ME15 0AZ, for a license to sell alcohol, play live and recorded music, and allow 

performances of dance from Friday to Sunday, 11 am to 10 pm.  

 

As a resident directly affected by this proposed development, I wish to highlight several key concerns that 

warrant careful consideration. My objection is based on the following Licensing Act 2003 objectives: 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance, and Protection of Children 

from Harm, and the applicant’s application that falls outside of Maidstone Borough Council’s Licensing 

Policy (the “Policy”) in many ways as laid out below. 

 

Misleading information and Omissions 

I would first like to point out comments within the Application which may be interpreted as intentionally 

misleading, misleading by omission, or wilful non-compliance with the notice requirements for the 

application 

 

General description of the premises:  

(a) School site primarily for the purpose of educating students aged 11 to 18/19.  

 

The premises is also used for business purposes.   

• The Council has granted permission for Applicant to hire out an Artificial Grass Pitch which is used 

within the hours of 

o 08:00 and 22:00 Monday to Friday; 08:00 and 18:00 on Saturday; and 

o 08:00 and 18:00 on Sunday and Bank Holidays 

• The Premises also hires out its playing fields to the public during out of school hours. 

 

The Application does not address the added wider implications that the competing businesses will have on 

one another, how they will be managed, or the implications on the local community and environment.  

 

(b) The premises we would like to hold our event on is the events field at Cornwallis Academy, it is large 

field in a rural situation with no immediate residential neighbours. 

96



Page | 2 
 

• The premises does not have planning permission for an events field 

• The premises is not in a rural environment. The premises is within a residential area with homes 

bordering three sides of the premises and part bordering the 4th.  

 
Displaying the notice on the premises  

“You must, for a period of no less than 28 consecutive days starting on the day after the day on which the 

application was given to the Licensing Authority, display a notice which is of a size equal or larger than A4, 

of a pale blue colour, printed legibly in black ink or typed in black in a font of a size equal to or larger than 

16 in all cases, prominently at or on the premises to which the application relates where it can be 

conveniently read from the exterior of the premises. In the case of a premises covering an area of more than 

fifty metres square, a further notice in the same form and subject to the same requirements must be placed 

every fifty metres along the external perimeter of the premises abutting any highway.” 

 

The premises covers an area of more than fifty metres square, and notices have not been placed every fifty 

metres along the external perimeter of the premises. Consequently, most local residents are unaware of 

the application or when informed by local residents had insufficient time to consider its implications.  

 

I respectfully ask the panel to consider rejecting the application, on the basis of the misleading information 

and commissions. 

 

Planning Conditions applicable to the premises 

I draw the panels attention to the context and spirit of the existing Planning Consent Conditions for the 

premises.  

 

Planning Conditions MA/08/2186  

2. The development shall be operated in accordance with a Travel Plan to be submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the buildings. The 

submitted Travel Plan shall include detailed proposals for monitoring and review together with 

measures to enforce the provisions of the plan if targets are not achieved. 

 

Reason: To minimise reliance and the use of the of the private car in the interests of sustainable 

development and to ensure safety and free flow of traffic in surrounding highway network, in 

accordance with Kent and Medway Structure Plan Policy S1 and the provisions of PPS1 and PPG13. 

 

3. The buildings and sports pitches/facilities hereby permitted shall not be used for community access 

outside the hours of 0800 and 2200 on any day. 

 

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of local residents in accordance with policy QL1 of the Kent 

& Medway Structure Plan 2006. 

 

15. The approved details of the parking/turning areas as shown on drawing no. L01L0001revA received 

by Kent County Council on 12/12/2008 shall be completed before the commencement of the use 

of the land or buildings hereby permitted and shall thereafter be kept available for such use. No 

development, whether permitted by the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

97



Page | 3 
 

Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re- enacting that Order, with or without 

modification) or not, shall be carried out on the areas indicated or in such a position as to preclude 

vehicular access to them;  

 

Reason: Development without adequate parking/turning provision is likely to lead to parking 

inconvenient to other road users and in the interests of road safety pursuant to policy T13 of the 

Maidstone Borough-wide Local Plan 2000. 

 

Planning Conditions 22/503920 (Approved 31 January 2023) 

(9) The Artificial Grass Pitch and its associated sports lighting shall not be used outside the hours 

of:  

a) 08:00 and 22:00 Monday to Friday; 08:00 and 18:00 on Saturday; and  

b) 08:00 and 18:00 on Sunday and Bank  

 

(10) A noise and lighting management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority prior to the first use of the facility. The noise and lighting management 

plan shall include  

o a no-whistle policy applying to the use of the facility,  

o confirmation that all perimeter fencing is constructed with neoprene isolators and that a 

maintenance regime is in place to ensure that the panels do not loosen over time.  

o measures to ensure that the lighting minimises spillage and that the lighting is maintained as it is 

installed with these measures.  

o the conclusions of an investigation into the use of red lighting in the interests of ecology and the 

environment and if feasible the introduction of this lighting.  

o procedures for responding to complaints from residents or the local authority and a review 

mechanism in response to justified complaints  

o a named contact where complaints can be directed.  

The approved artificial sports pitch shall only operate in accordance with the approved noise and 

lighting management plan.  

Reason: To safeguard the enjoyment of their properties by adjoining residential occupiers. 

 

(11) An acoustic fence shall be provided prior to the first use of the artificial grass pitch hereby 

permitted. The acoustic fence shall be in accordance with details that have previously been 

submitted to and approved in witing with the fencing thereafter be maintained in position in 

perpetuity.  

Reason: To safeguard the enjoyment of their properties by adjoining residential occupiers. 

 

(12) The floodlighting hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the written details 

as set out in the submitted Design and Access Statement/ SSL Flood lighting design report (received 

8th August 202222/10/18) and maintained as such thereafter. The floodlighting shall only be 

operated within the approved hours of use.  

Reason: To safeguard the enjoyment of their properties by adjoining residential occupiers and in 

the interests of visual amenity 

 

98



Page | 4 
 

It is difficult to reconcile an application which contravenes in almost every way the very spirit of the 

conditions imposed to limit public nuisance.  

 

 

 

I would also like to draw the panels attention to Clause 3.21 of the Maidstone Borough Council’s Licencing 

Act 2003 Policy which reads:  

Licensing and planning permission. The use of a licensed premises or place may be subject to planning 

controls. This is a separate regulatory regime outside the scope of the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing 

Authority recognises that there is no legal basis for refusing a licence application in the absence of any 

planning permission for the business to which the licence application relates. However, all applicants should 

be in possession of the necessary planning authorisation for their activities or planning enforcement may be 

considered. 

 

The licencing application repurposes the premises from its current use to one of Business.  In general, all 

premises which are the subject of an application, should have the benefit of planning permission, or be 

deemed permitted development. Although, Licensing and Planning are separate regimes, consents from 

both must be in place to operate legally.  

 

The Four Licensing Objectives  

 

The prevention of crime and disorder  

The list below are all contributing factors to Crime and Disorder:  

• Crime and Disorder with the residential areas surrounding the premises is very low to non-existent. 

The licence jeopardises the security and peaceful existence of the residents by bringing the risk of 

nuisance and anti-social behaviour into their immediate environment.   

• The applicant is unknown to the Local authority in that it has a very limited track record of holding 

events on its “events field” (two a year).  

• The venue capacity is unknown. If unknown how will the capacity be regulated? How will the 

capacity limits be calculated?  

• The premises arena will not be cordoned off so it is difficult to understand how the prevention of 

Crime and Disorder will be minimised – the applicants comments promoting licencing objectives 

are not comparable to the very stringent and robust safety and security procedures in place at all 

open-air events at Mote Park.  

• There are 247 car parking places on the premises. The number of cars using the venue will rise 

substantially over daily use due to the enlarged capacity and distinct lack of Public Transport in the 

evening and Sundays. How many will be drinking and driving, how will the Licensee police this, or 

will this crime simply go unnoticed.  

• The site is approximately 10.745 hectares in size. How can SIA Security Guards and staff possibly 

patrol, monitor and keep order of so many hundreds of persons on a site with multiple and varied 

spaces to do whatever they please.  

• The licenced application is for 3 days of 11:00 to 22:00 being 33 hours per week. Maidstone’s 

Licencing Policy requires the DPS to be on site for the majority of the time. It is highly unlikely that 

the DPS will be able to maintain these hours given the DPS is in the full-time employment of the 

Applicant in another capacity. The current hours are excessive for proper supervision by the DPS.  

99



Page | 5 
 

• There is a very real risk that the site will introduce drug taking and distribution into peaceful area. 

• Alcohol consumption will lead to increased noise and anti-social behaviour, which will disturb the 

peace and safety of the residential community. There is also a concern about increased traffic and 

potential for illegal parking, further disrupting the local environment and potentially obstructing 

emergency access routes. 

• There is a real risk of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from the 

licensed premises and this will have a significant impact on the security and wellbeing of local 

residents. 

• The Applicants solution to promoting Public safety is: Any incidents of a criminal nature that may 

occur on the premises will be reported the police. We will install comprehensive CCTV coverage at 

the premises and it is operated and maintained at the premises. Copies will be made available to 

Police on request We will be employing SIA Security Guards who will be on patrol and at the entry 

and exit points at all times when the public will be on site. They will also be carrying out searches 

when guests enter the arena. Any glass found in the area will be confiscated. We have adopted a 

zero tolerance policy to drugs, violence and social disorder. This will be made clear to all guests on 

booking and again on entry. The bar areas will be selling all drinks in plastic cups so no glass or 

bottles will be used. This is a somewhat naïve comment, demonstrating the applicants lack of 

understanding of their responsibilities and the potential risks and consequences of managing 

events of this scale 3 days a week, 52 weeks of the year. That said the applicant has to some extent 

considered the steps within the Maidstone’s Licencing policy to promote the prevention of crime 

and disorder.  

 

Public Safety  

• The venue is a considerable distance from Maidstone town centre and will therefore not be 

patrolled by the Police, so any drink related altercations will have to be controlled by the venues 

staff. With such a large capacity a large number of well-trained security staff would be required, 

firstly to prevent altercations and secondly to quell any that transpire. If this was a town centre 

location it would most surely be on the Police radar for regular visits.  

• Drivers exiting the site having consumed alcohol onto one of Maidstone’s busiest trunk roads will 

pose a danger to other road users and local residents. There is a very real risk of patrons of the 

facility parking in local roads to avoid being seen leaving the venue and being pulled up and be 

breathalysed.  

• As stated under Prevention of Crime and Disorder there is a risk that the site will be used for drug 

taking and distribution. This poses a Public Safety issue to anyone on site or outside. It should be 

noted that this is a school premises; this is a distinct safeguarding issue for both adults and children.  

• The Applicants solution to promoting Public safety is: Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place 

including fire extinguishers (foam, H20 and CO2), fire blanket, internally illuminated fire exit signs, 

numerous smoke detectors and emergency lighting (see enclosed plan for details of locations). All 

appliances are inspected annually. All emergency exits shall be kept free from obstruction at all 

times. We have a First Aid tent staffed by a Paramedic and First Aiders to tend to any medical issues. 

This has been situated in easy reach of the access road and emergency exit. This is a somewhat 

naïve comment, demonstrating the applicants lack of understanding of their responsibilities and 

the potential risks and consequences of managing events of this scale 3 days a week, 52 weeks of 

the year. The applicant has not demonstrated that that they have considered the steps within the 

Maidstone’s Licencing policy to promote public safety.  

 

The prevention of public nuisance  

100



Page | 6 
 

• The premises is on a raised piece of land. Allowing tannoy’s, loud music, and alcohol to be 

consumed will allow the noise to travel across the open space into surrounding homes, right down 

into Loose Valley creating a Public Nuisance to many and across a wide area.  

• The extended hours of operation until 10 pm three days a week, especially with live and recorded 

music, will cause significant noise disturbance to residents. This will negatively impact local 

residents’ quality of life, particularly during weekends when families expect a peaceful 

environment. The potential for littering and vandalism also poses a threat to the cleanliness and 

upkeep of our community spaces. 

• In recent years the Applicant has held outdoor events which caused Public Nuisance from noise to 

excessive traffic. These events created a noise nuisance, particularly by the events PA system, that 

could be heard inside our house with the doors and windows closed. All announcements are clearly 

discernible and loud, and a disruption while attempting to relax or entertain in our garden. As this 

nuisance only happens twice a year, we are prepared to tolerate it and we have not made any 

formal complaints. The idea that the Applicant is proposing to move from holding two events a year 

to holding events for 33 hours a week does not bear thinking about. The noise generated through 

the increased number of events will dramatically affect the quality of life for nearby residents, 

leading to disturbances and potential health impacts due to increased stress and interrupted sleep 

patterns. 

• The proximity of the school to residential properties, including mine, raises significant privacy 

issues. The raised event field and buildings that overlook backyards and homes will lead to a loss of 

privacy for residents, affecting their comfort and the use of our outdoor spaces. 

• Allowing alcohol to be consumed outside the building on such a raised piece of land will allow the 

noise (usually shouting after a few drinks) to travel across the open space into surrounding homes, 

thus creating a Public Nuisance to many and across a wide area.  

• As the premises is not a town centre location there will be little or no policing leading to possible 

disorder in the venue and car parks and spilling out into the parkland surrounding the venue.  

• There is a real risk to the local community of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once 

they are away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct control of the Licence 

holder. How will this be policed? 

• No provision appears to have been made in the Application for a short (e.g. 30 mins) ‘wind down’ 

or ‘drinking up’ period allowed for after the cessation time of entertainment and alcohol sales as 

this is effective in assisting in a reduction in noise and exuberance of customers before leaving the 

premises. If this is to be considered does this mean that the events will finish at 21:30, and that 

patrons will have until 22:00 to disperse. 

• The Applicants solution to promoting the prevention of public nuisance is: “All customers will be 

asked to leave quietly. Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed to remind customers 

to leave quietly and have regard to our neighbours.” This is a somewhat naïve comment, which 

demonstrates the Applicants lack of understanding of their responsibilities and the potential risks 

and consequences of managing events of this scale 3 days a week, 52 weeks of the year. The 

applicant has not demonstrated that that they have considered the steps within the Maidstone’s 

Licencing policy to prevent public nuisance:  

 

The protection of children from harm.  

• It is difficult to reconcile the Cornwallis schools stated values and pledges (e.g. nurture a safe an 

engaging environment) with an Licence application that jeopardises its very core. 

• With the school in close proximity to residential areas, including many homes with children, there 

is a legitimate concern for the welfare of these minors. Exposure to alcohol consumption, loud 

101



Page | 7 
 

music, and large groups during the evening could have a detrimental effect on their well-being and 

sense of security. 

• The application includes the provision of Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of dance and 

the supply of Alcohol every Friday between 11:00/12:00 and 22:00. I application allows for the 

provision the provision of entertainment and the supply of alcohol during schools hours, and the 

hours in which children will be making use of the Artificial Grass Pitch, many of whom will be 

participating without parental support. 

• The proposal to sell alcohol on school premises, even if intended for use during specific events or 

by adults, sets a concerning precedent. It risks normalizing alcohol consumption in a setting that 

should prioritize the health and development of children and young adults. This could inadvertently 

diminish the effectiveness of educational programs aimed at preventing underage drinking. 

• Introducing alcohol sales to a facility within a school environment raises concerns over increased 

security risks and the potential for alcohol-related incidents. This includes the possibility of 

underage access to alcohol, increased vehicular traffic from events, and the challenges of managing 

intoxicated individuals, all of which could compromise the safety and security of the students and 

staff. 

• There is a broader public health implication to consider. Encouraging alcohol consumption at 

community or school events can contribute to health issues related to alcohol misuse. This is 

counterproductive to public health campaigns aimed at reducing alcohol-related harm within 

communities. 

• The premises is a family orientated venue, however, the application changes its use to also 

becoming an out of town entertainment venue which is licensed. The previous family facing facility 

will disappear and any children attending will be confronted with adverts to buy alcohol, dozens of 

adults drinking around them, party nights, amplified music, drug use and trade  

• The DPS will not be able to be on site for the majority of the time (33 hours per week) which means 

that the safeguarding of children will be an issue for a large amount of the time.  

• This out-of-town entertainment venue will have no policing other than in an emergency (if called 

out, with prolonged wait times for a response), were it a town centre there would be a police 

presence giving children at least some on the spot and available protection; without effective 

policing anything could happen.  

• The Applicants comments to the protection of children from harm: The licensee and staff will ask 

persons who appear to be under the age of 25 for photographic ID such as proof of age cards, the 

Connexions Card and Citizen Card, photographic driving licence or passport, an official identity card 

issued by HM Forces or by an EU country, bearing the photograph and date of birth of bearer. All 

staff will be trained for UNDERAGE SALES PREVENTION regularly. A register of refused sales shall be 

kept and maintained on the premises. The performers have been reminded that it is a event for all 

ages and no foul language should be used. If children do get separated from their parents we have 

a designated signed area by the First Aid tent for a Meeting Point and all stewards will be briefed in 

safeguarding children at this event. This is another naïve comment, demonstrating the applicants 

lack of understanding of their responsibilities and the potential risks and consequences of 

managing events of this scale 3 days a week, 52 weeks of the year. The applicant has not 

demonstrated that that they have considered the steps within the Maidstone’s Licencing policy to 

promote the protection of children from harm.  

 

 

 

 

102



Page | 8 
 

Community and Family Environment  

 

• Schools serve as community hubs, which occasionally host family-friendly events and activities. 

Permitting alcohol sales can alter the family-oriented nature of these gatherings, potentially 

deterring attendance, and participation from those who prefer or require an alcohol-free 

environment for personal, cultural, or religious reasons. 

 

 

 

Given these concerns, I urge the Maidstone Borough Council to reject the application for an alcohol sales 

license at The Cornwallis School. I believe there are alternative ways to support school funding or event 

enjoyment that do not involve introducing alcohol sales into a school environment. 

 

Thank you for considering my objections. I am committed to the wellbeing of our community and am 

available for further discussion on this matter. 

 

 

Kevin Massam 

103



104



56 

From: tanya fisher  
Sent: 11 March 2024 23:28 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Fwd: Applica�on for a Premises Licence - 23/03156/LAPRE Future Schools Trust 
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL: Exercise cau�on unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
> Dear Sir/Madam 
> 
> We are wri�ng with regard to the above applica�on number. We strongly object to this applica�on. 
> 
> Firstly we wish to highlight that Maidstone Borough Council currently has an outstanding 
applica�on awai�ng a decision(23/503026/SUB) made by the same applicants Future Schools Trust, 
Cornwallis School. This applica�on is to discharge the condi�ons that had been placed on the 
successful applica�on (22/503920/FULL) for the crea�on of 3D ar�ficial grass pitch (AGP) with 
perimeter fencing, hard standing and floodlight columns and storage. The discharge condi�ons 
appear to incorporate noise and ligh�ng management. 
> 
> In addi�on to the above men�oned outstanding applica�on decision, we are rather astonished that 
the applicants consider it appropriate for a further applica�on for a Premises Licence, which will 
greatly affect the surrounding local area. 
 
> We feel it is totally inappropriate for a secondary school se�ng to be applying for an alcohol 
licence. What message is this giving the young students who atend the school who are aged 
between 11 and 18 years old. 
> 
> The applica�on suggests there are no immediate residen�al neighbours, which is completely 
misleading and inaccurate. The real purpose of the applica�on would suggest a social venue which 
we suspect will set a precedent to be used more o�en once the applica�on has been granted. 
 
> As Cornwallis Academy is run like a business they are clearly using this opportunity to raise 
revenue. The school are partnered with Maidstone United Football Club and Maidstone Dance 
Studios both of which already have their own facili�es within the Maidstone area. 
> 
> The noise and disturbance to the neighbourhood, which currently enjoys a reasonably quiet 
loca�on, would not be in keeping with the local peaceful community area. 
> 
> We have already been affected by the noise level from shou�ng players and supporters and 
dreadful swearing during the use of the Ar�ficial grass pitch during the day�me at the weekends. In 
addi�on the loud music during fireworks evening and the schools summer event can be heard from 
our home and much further a field. We are not adverse to these one off events which we understand 
is granted by licence each year, and of course this enables the students the opportunity to enjoy the 
fireworks display and end of summer ac�vi�es. 
> 
> However, to allow a permanent Friday to Sunday alcohol and music licence would completely affect 
the local area and also have a detrimental affect on the wildlife that roam in the evenings. The 
badgers that roam around our home and in Salts Avenue could be disrupted within their habitat 
which ul�mately could have an impact on their ability to con�nue to thrive. 
 

105



> The noise level and light pollu�on will also adversely affect our enjoyment of our garden, our 
health and quality of life. If the applica�on was granted it could also poten�ally affect the house 
values, cause an�social behaviour during and a�er any events as atendees leave the venue. Another 
concern would be that this applica�on could also inadvertently encourage under age drinking. 
> 
> The applica�on would almost certainly set a precedent for more regular events if granted. The 
applica�on does not s�pulate the inten�on of the amount of usage or future events the venue are 
intending to pursue. This would inevitably cause increasing noise levels and poten�al adverse affects 
on the wider community. 
> 
> Please take into considera�on our views when making any decisions on this applica�on. 
> 
> Kind regards 
> Mr M and Mrs T Fisher 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> Sent from my iPhone 
 

106



From: Mr M Dadson  
Sent: Friday, March 8, 2024 11:06 AM 
To: Lorraine Neale <LorraineNeale@maidstone.gov.uk> 
Cc: Louise Davis <LouiseHicks@Maidstone.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: 23/03156/LAPRE - The Cornwallis School 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Hi Lorraine, 

We can make this date. 

Please be aware of the statement that I have sent to the Parish Council. I want to make it clear, although I 
could not on the application. We do not want an annual license. We wish to have a licence to cover our 
fireworks event in November and a TEN is not enough from a capacity point of view. 

I have attached this letter as they asked us for our reasoning. 

Mason Dadson | Marketing & Events Manager | Future Schools Trust 
 | |   

To see what site we are primarily working at, please click here.

APPENDIX 4

107

https://www.canva.com/design/DAF3VOHbWnM/vaUGGG5VXjSdPBQaTH_zYQ/view?utm_content=DAF3VOHbWnM&utm_campaign=designshare&utm_medium=link&utm_source=editor


 
 
 
 
 
 
Loose Parish Council 
PO Box 634 
Maidstone 
Kent 
ME17 4YR 

Cornwallis Academy c/o Future Schools Trust 
Hubbards Lane 

Loose 
Maidstone 

Kent 
ME17 4HX 

Thursday 7th March 2024 
 
Dear Clerk  
 
Re: Cornwallis Academy Premises Licence Application   
 
Upon reviewing the Environment Committee agenda for Monday 11th March, I can see that the above application 
is named under section 6i; although as a trust we are unable to attend in person, I wanted to ensure that our 
intentions were communicated formally to the parish council with a hope that the chair would read the below 
statement to ensure there is a balance and fairness. 
 
Future Schools Trust statement: 

I can confirm, the application for Cornwallis Academy’s Premises Licence is to ensure that Cornwallis’ 
Annual Fireworks event continues to run successfully going forward. Cornwallis Fireworks event is a fun 
and enjoyable event for all in the community, enhancing the life experiences of the disadvantaged 
members of our community. A further point of clarification, I understand that some local residents believe 
we are planning to extend the 3G Pitch opening times; please rest assured the school has no intention of 
opening the pitch past the current arrangements as approved by MBC in December 2022. We hope that 
this statement addresses the concerns raised by some of our local residents, as always, we encourage 
local residents to contact us directly with any concerns so we can address them more quickly.  
 
-  Mr Mason Dadson, FST Marketing & Events Manager 

 
----------------------------------------------------------- statement closed --------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
Should any attendees wish to find out more, or for me to contact them them directly to allay any concerns, I 
would be grateful for you to share my contact email: mason.dadson@futureschoolstrust.com. 
 
 
Kind regards 
 
 
 
 
Mr Mason Dadson 
Marketing & Events Manager – Future Schools Trust  

108



 Appendix 5 

From: Mr M Dadson  
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 10:29 AM 
To: Lorraine Neale <LorraineNeale@maidstone.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: The Cornwallis School- Hearing date 18.04.24 
 

 

 CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Hi Lorraine, 
 
Thank you for your time. 
 
Please see attached the witness attendance document from us. 
 
To allay some quite relevant concerns, we have no intentions of having a full year premises license. 
As a condition of usage, we would propose the licence to be for no more that 4 events per calendar 
year. 
 
 

 

Mr M Dadson | Marketing & Events Manager | Future Schools Trust  

 

 

To see what site we are primarily working at, please click here. 
 

109

https://www.canva.com/design/DAF3VOHbWnM/vaUGGG5VXjSdPBQaTH_zYQ/view?utm_content=DAF3VOHbWnM&utm_campaign=designshare&utm_medium=link&utm_source=editor


Enter map title
Scale: 1:3000
Printed on: 2/4/2024 at 19:12 PM by LorraineN © Astun Technology Ltd

Ordnance Survey - data derived from OS PremiumOrdnance Survey - data derived from OS Premium

50 m
100 f t

APPENDIX  6

110



 
 

APPENDIX 7 

 
HUMAN RIGHTS 

 
Article 8 
1. Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his correspondence. 
2. There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right except such as is 

in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic society in the interests of national 
security, public safety or the economic well-being of the country, for the prevention of disorder or 
crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of 
others. 

 
 
Article 1 of the First Protocol 
Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions. No one shall be 
deprived of his possessions except in the public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by 
law and by the general principles of international law. The preceding provisions shall not, however, in 
any way impair the right of a State to enforce such laws as it deems necessary to control the use of 
property in accordance with the general interest or to secure the payment of taxes or other 
contributions or penalties. 
 
 
Article 6(1) 
In the determination of his civil rights and obligations or of any criminal charge against him, everyone 
is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and impartial 
tribunal established by law. Judgement shall be pronounced publicly but the press and public may be 
excluded from all or part of the trial in the interest of morals, public order or national security in a 
democratic society, where the interests of juveniles or the protection of the private life of the parties so 
require, or to the extent strictly necessary in the opinion of the court in special circumstances where 
publicity would prejudice the interests of justice. 
 
 
Article 10 
3. Everyone has the right to freedom of expression. This right shall include freedom to hold opinions 

and to receive and impart information and ideas without interference by public authority and 
regardless of frontiers. This Article shall not prevent States from requiring the licensing of 
broadcasting, television or cinema enterprises.  

4. The exercise of these freedoms, since it carries with it duties and responsibilities, may be subject 
to such formalities, conditions, restrictions or penalties as are prescribed by law and are 
necessary in a democratic society, in the interests of national security, territorial integrity or public 
safety, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, for the 
protection of the reputation or rights of others, for preventing the disclosure of information 
received in confidence, or for maintaining the authority and impartiality of the judiciary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111



APPENDIX 8 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\9\AI00051973\$hwgmvwr0.doc 

1 

 
 
 

LICENSING AUTHORITY: 

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee Hearing Procedure of  
Applications for New Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates and 

Variations to existing licences and certificates 
 

 

Introduction and Procedure 
 

i) Introductions  
 

The Chairman will request all those persons participating in the hearing to identify 
themselves, starting with the: 

 

 Members of the sub-committee (who will, if applicable, declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests) 

 

 Legal advisor 
 

 Committee clerk 
 

 Maidstone Borough Council licensing officers/managers 
 

 Applicant (and any representative) 
 

 Each responsible authority (and any representative) 
 

 Each interested party (and any spokesperson or representative)   
 

 
ii) Procedural Matters 

 

• Procedure 
 
The Chairman will: 

 

112



APPENDIX 8 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\9\AI00051973\$hwgmvwr0.doc 

2 

 Confirm that all parties are aware of the sub-committee hearing procedure and that 
each party has a copy of the hearing procedure document. 

 

• Submissions 
 
The Chairman will: 

 

 Explain that the sub-committee will allow all parties to put their case fully and 
make full submissions, within a reasonable time frame. 

 

 

• Discussion and cross-examination 
 
The Chairman will: 

 

 Explain that the sub-committee procedure shall take the form of a discussion led 
by the sub-committee. 

 

 Explain that the sub-committee will usually permit cross examination (conducted 
within a reasonable time frame). 

 
 

• Disruptive Behaviour 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Explain that where any person attending the hearing behaves in a disruptive 

manner, the sub-committee may direct that person to leave the hearing (including 
temporarily) and thereafter the person may submit to the sub-committee in writing 
any information which the person would have been entitled to give orally had the 

person not been required to leave the hearing. 
 

• Reading of Papers 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Confirm that all sub-committee members have pre–read all the papers and any 
other documents contained in the report regarding the hearing.  

 

• Draft Conditions 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Enquire whether draft conditions have been agreed between the applicant and 
any of the other parties for the sub-committee to consider. 
 

• Witnesses 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Enquire whether any parties request to have any witnesses give evidence at the 

hearing; and if so grant the request unless the request is unreasonable. 
 

113



APPENDIX 8 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\9\AI00051973\$hwgmvwr0.doc 

3 

 Invite the parties, where appropriate, to appoint a spokesperson. 
 

      The Hearing 
 

Outline of the Application and Representations 

 The Chairman will ask the legal advisor or community services manager to briefly 
outline the application and all representations regarding the application. 

 
i) The Applicant 

 

 Opening remarks by the applicant (or their representative). 
 

 Evidence of the applicant and any witnesses. 
 

 After each person has given evidence the person may be questioned by each 
responsible authority, interested party and sub-committee member. 

 

 If necessary, the applicant (or their representative) may clarify any matter that 
arose during questioning. 
 

ii) Responsible Authorities (where applicable) 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
AUTHORITY 

Tick if 
applicable 

Police  

Trading standards  

Environmental 
Health 

 

Child Protection 
(Social 
Services) 

 

Planning  

Fire and Rescue  

 

 Opening remarks by the officer representing the responsible authority (or their 
representative).  

 Evidence of the responsible authority officer and any witnesses. 
 

 After each person has given evidence the person may be questioned by the 
applicant, each other responsible authority, interested party and sub-committee 
member. 

 If necessary, the officer (or representative) may clarify any matter that arose during 
questioning. 

 
iii) Interested Parties 

 

 Opening remarks by the interested party (or spokesperson/representative). 
 

 Evidence of the interested party and any witnesses. 
 

114



APPENDIX 8 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\9\AI00051973\$hwgmvwr0.doc 

4 

 After each person has given evidence the person may be questioned by the 
applicant, responsible authorities, each other interested party and sub-committee 

member. 

 If necessary, the interested party (or spokesperson/representative) may clarify any 
matter that arose during questioning. 

 

Closing Speeches 
 
In the following order: 

 

 Each Responsible Authority 
 

 Each Interested Party 
 

 The Applicant  
 

 

End of Hearing 
 
 

 The Chairman will ask the members of the sub-committee if they have any final 
questions for any party to the hearing.  
 

 The Chairman will ask the legal advisor whether there are any further matters to be 
raised or resolved before the hearing is closed.  

 

 The Chairman will bring the hearing to a close and shall declare that the sub-
committee will retire, to private session, to consider the application, all relevant 
representations, evidence, the relevant extracts of Licensing Authority’s Statement 

of Licensing Policy, the relevant extracts of the National Guidance issued under 
section 182 of The Licensing Act 2003 and the licensing objectives under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 

 The Chairman shall invite the legal advisor to remain with the sub-committee during 
its deliberations and ask all other persons to withdraw from the room. 

 
 

The Decision 
 
The Chairman shall declare in public session: 

 

 The sub-committee’s determination. 
 

  All parties to the hearing will receive a copy of the written Determination Notice 
regarding the sub-committee’s determination. 

 

 All parties may appeal against the sub-committee’s decision within 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the appellant is notified of the Licensing 

Authority’s written determination.  Appeals must be lodged with the Magistrates’ 
Court.  Parties should be aware that the Magistrates Court may make an order with 

115



APPENDIX 8 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\9\AI00051973\$hwgmvwr0.doc 

5 

respect to costs on any appeal. 
 

 The hearing is formally closed. 

116


	Agenda
	7 Application for a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 for The Cornwallis School, Hubbards Lane, Boughton Monchelsea, Kent, ME17 4HX
	1 Appendix - Cornwallis School - Application form_Redacted
	2 Appendix - Cornwallis School - Premise Plan
	Sheets and Views
	SSL3028 21 11 17-02 - Site Location Plan


	3 Appendix - Objections 1 - 56_Redacted
	4 Appendix - email from Applicant_Redacted
	4a Appendix Cornwallis Academy PREM License - LPC Committee Meeting Letter (002)
	5 Appendix -Email - condition from applicant
	6 Appendix - Plan of the area
	Enter map title

	7 Appendix - Human Rights.
	8 Appendix - Order of Procedure of New and Variation Hearings




